Public Document Pack

Agenda
Committee Administrator:

Democratic Services Officer (01609 767015)
Wednesday, 10 February 2021

Dear Councillor
Notice of Meeting
Meeting

Scrutiny Committee

Date

Thursday, 18 February 2021

Time

9.30 am

Venue

Virtual Meeting via Teams

Yours sincerely

J. Ives.
Dr Justin Ives
Chief Executive

To:

Councillors
K G Hardisty (Chairman)
D Watkins (Vice-Chairman)
P Atkin
P Bardon
R W Hudson
R Kirk

Councillors
N A Knapton
Mrs J W Mortimer
J Noone
G Ramsden
A Wake

Other Members of the Council for information
Note: Owing to the recent Covid-19 pandemic and government guidance, the Council has
made arrangements under the Coronavirus Act 2020, and subsequent Regulations permitting
remote meetings, to hold the meeting virtually via Teams. For access to the meeting, please
click on the media link displayed on the internet to direct you to Teams or alternatively please
dial the telephone number 020 3855 5195 followed by the Conference ID: 568 564 428#
For further information, please contact the Democratic Services Officer, Louise Hancock, on
telephone: 01609 767015 or email committeeservices@hambleton.gov.uk

Agenda
Page No
1.

Minutes
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 3 December 2020 (SC.7 SC.11), previously circulated.

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Council Performance 2020/21 (Quarter 3)

1 - 32

Report of the Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 Officer)
4.

Review of Risk Management - 2020/21 Q3
Report of the Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 Officer)

5.

Matters of Urgency
Any other business of which not less than 24 hours’ prior notice,
preferably in writing, has been given to the Chief Executive and which
the Chairman decides is urgent.

33 - 58

Agenda Item 3
Hambleton District Council
Report To:

Scrutiny Committee
18 February 2021

From:

Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 Officer)

Subject:

Council Performance 2020/21 (Quarter 3)

Wards Affected:

All Wards

1.0

Purpose and Background

1.1

The Council Plan for 2019 – 2023, in its second year, was approved at Cabinet on
8 September 2020 and at Full Council on 15 September 2020.

1.2

The Council Plan shows the Council’s goals with measurable outcomes in the form
of Council Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). The Council’s approach to
performance management is designed to ensure that priorities are effectively
implemented, monitored and managed to achieve real improvements in the quality
of life in the local community.

1.3

This report provides Scrutiny Committee with details on progress towards the
Council’s aims. Progress is reported on a cumulative year-to-date basis, with the
actual results achieved during Quarter 3 being provided to enable a comprehensive
review.

1.4

Covid-19 has significantly impacted upon the services either directly or indirectly
during this financial year and will continue to do so throughout Quarter 4. In spite of
this, the Council has performed remarkably well. The Capital Programme is still on
target to complete by the end of the financial year, it has currently expended 47%
as detailed in the Quarter 3 Capital Programme and Treasury Management
Monitoring Report. In addition, all major schemes are still progressing well which is
an outstanding achievement in the circumstances.

1.5

The public has access to this information through these published reports.

1.6

The Council’s performance and risks are also reported quarterly to Management
Team.

2.0

Link to Council Priorities

2.1

An overview of performance against each Council priority is attached in Annex A.

2.2

In summary, 76% or 19 KPIs performed within tolerance at Quarter 3.

Page 1

2.3

The KPI’s not meeting their target or performing below tolerance at Quarter 3 are:
2.3.1 Increase the number of major planning applications determined within 13
weeks, or as agreed with the applicant, to 80%.
Target Q3: 80%
YTD Target at Q3: 80%

Actual Q3: 69% (9 out of 13)
YTD Actual at Q3: 74% (23 out of 31)

In Quarter 3 some older, undetermined applications were determined. These
had previously been pended awaiting further information from the customer.
Some of these applications were refused and agreements for the late
determinations were not given. As a result of this, the overall performance
statistics for Quarter 3 are lower.
Performance around major applications is improving and is receiving positive
feedback from customers, most notably and recently from Lichfields,
representing BP (British Petroleum) and other operators for a development
site in Thirsk, who have thanked officers for their efforts and are delighted
with the outcome of their submission. The Senior Officers are writing these
applications up in a specific order and to timescales agreed with the Chief
Planning Officer, Development Managers and Members. Applicants are
willingly agreeing Extensions of Time where necessary and it is anticipated
that the 2020/21 target will be met by the end of Quarter 4.
2.3.2 Increase the number of minor planning applications determined within 8
weeks, or as agreed with the applicant, to 85%.
Target Q3: 85%
YTD Target at Q3: 85%

Actual Q3: 75.7% (100 out of 132)
YTD Actual at Q3: 80.2% (312 out of 389)

In spite of staff changes and a management re-shuffle during the year,
75.7% of applications have been determined which exceeds the national
target of 75%. However, in Quarter 3 some older, undetermined applications
were determined. These had previously been pended awaiting further
information from the customer. Some of these applications were refused and
agreements for the late determinations were not given. The overall
performance statistics for Quarter 3 are lower as a result
Despite the Covid-19 Pandemic there has been an increase in planning
application numbers and the fee income received for planning applications
and pre-application advice in comparison to 2019/2020. There has been a
slight shortfall in performance as adjustments have been made to adapt to
the lockdowns. However, extra staff have been brought in and are settled into
their new ways of working. In addition, the number of applications received
has eased as expected in December and January. The majority of these will
be determined before April and therefore it is anticipated that the 2020/21
target will be met by the end of Quarter 4.

Page 2

2.3.3 Achieve Health & Fitness membership base of 3,322 in 2020/21
Target Q3: 3,322
YTD Target at Q3: 3,322

Actual Q3: 2,465
YTD Actual at Q3: 2,888

This is a year-end target and fluctuation is anticipated throughout the year.
The centres were closed due to Covid-19 for the whole of Quarter 1 and
memberships frozen and/or cancelled. Leisure centres re-opened on the 25
July 2020 with limited activities and capacities due to Covid-19 distancing
restrictions. Some memberships are still frozen and/or cancelled. A further
one month closure occurred in Quarter 3 from 05 November 2020 because
of Covid-19.
This KPI will not be achieved because of the impact of Covid-19. The
closures and restrictions placed upon centres mean that many customers
have cancelled their memberships. Some have frozen their memberships
prior to returning to the centres when they are re-open.
2.3.4 Achieve 'Learn2 Swim' membership base of 2,350 in 2020/21
Target Q3: 2,350
YTD Target at Q3: 2,350

Actual Q3: 768
YTD Actual at Q3:1,230

This is a year-end target and fluctuation is anticipated throughout the year.
The centres were closed due to Covid-19 for the whole of Quarter 1 and
memberships frozen and/or cancelled. Swimming lessons restarted in
Quarter 2 with restrictions to capacity because of social distancing, in line
with guidance from Swim England. Some memberships are still frozen and/or
cancelled. Quarter 2 shows active Learn 2 Swim members only. A further
one-month closure occurred in Quarter 3 from 05 November 2020 due to
Covid-19.
This KPI will not be achieved because of the impact of Covid-19. The
closures and restrictions placed upon centres mean that many customers
have cancelled their memberships. Some have frozen their memberships
prior to returning to the centres when they are re-open.
2.3.5 Complete 100% (16/16) of private water supply risk assessments in 2020/21.
Target Q3: 8
YTD Target at Q3: 8/16

Actual Q3: 0
YTD Actual at Q3:0/16

There are 16 private water supply risk assessments due. These were unable
to be carried out in Q1, Q2 or Q3 due to Covid-19 restrictions and guidance
from the Drinking Water Inspectorate. It is also now anticipated that they will
not be undertaken in Q4 for the same reasons. This is subject to change as
the service responds to Covid-19 and any guidance from the Drinking Water
Inspectorate changes. Many of the risk assessments are to be carried out at
commercial premises which have not been trading due to Coronavirus
Restrictions and therefore access is not possible.

Page 3

2.3.6 Adopt the new Local Plan by March 2021.
Target Q3: On Target

Target Q3: Delayed until Q3 2021/22

The Planning Inspectorate began examination of the Local Plan in Quarter 3.
This took place, in spite of Covid-19 restrictions, via a blend of virtual and
physical hearings which Hambleton District Council was amongst the first to
use. The Planning Inspectorate determined that:
Additional work was required on Sustainability Appraisal and on the Gypsy
and Traveller Accommodation Assessment. As a result, a further period of
consultation is required along with another hearing session. The revised
date for receipt of the Inspectors Report is in 2021/22 Quarter 2 with
adoption in 2021/22 Quarter 3.
3.0

Conclusions

3.1

Performance against the Council Plan 2019-23 key priorities is being managed and
action plans have been successfully developed to address areas of weaker
performance to assist the Council to progress to meet its priorities.

4.0

Recommendation

4.1

It is recommended that the Scrutiny Committee considers the progress made at
Quarter 3 against the Council Plan 2019 - 2023, as detailed in Annex A of the
report.

Louise Branford-White
Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 officer)
Background papers:

Departmental Service Plans

Author ref:

Louise Branford-White
Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 officer)
Direct Line No: (01609) 767024
Jacky Byrne
Performance and Improvement Officer
Direct Line No: (01609) 767034

Page 4

ANNEX A

Council Performance Quarter 3
1 October 2020 – 31 December 2020
This report provides information on performance towards the Council Business Plan Priorities for the third quarter of 2020/21, as
reported to the Management Team on 20 January 2021.
Key Priorities:

 Driving Economic Vitality
 Enhancing Health & Wellbeing
Page 5

 Caring for the Environment
 Providing a Special Place to Live

PRIORITY – Driving Economic Vitality

Page 6

Purpose:
- Promote growth of local economy
- Support economic growth through
planning
- Enable businesses to set up and grow
- Provide business friendly services
- Establish links with education
- Maximise private sector investment in the
district
- Improve market town vitality and viability
- Forging links with local businesses to
support their ambitions

Outcome:
- New business & commercial openings made available
- Increased grant availability and opportunities for young people
- Businesses stay, grow and relocate to the area
- Support developers to achieve planning permission for new homes, businesses,
industrial developments & infrastructure
- Community Infrastructure Levy is implemented to assist economic development
- Land is allocated to meet employment needs until 2035 through the new Local Plan

Indicator

Target /
Benchmark

Quarter 3

28

15

Facilitate 28 young people into local small
businesses by April 2021 through
apprenticeships and the graduate scheme.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

YTD

Q3 Actions / Comment
27

This programme has continued to be
delivered but has been impacted by
Covid-19. On 25 November 2020
Management Team agreed to transfer
£20K from the graduate fund into the
apprentice wage subsidy fund. This
means that 10 further businesses can be
supported to employ an apprentice.

Page 2 of 27

Indicator

Target /
Benchmark
£1m

Increase footfall across Hambleton’s Market
Towns by 5% during 2020/21.

5%

Page 7

Support £1m of new business investment in
Hambleton during 2020/21.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Quarter 3

YTD

Q3 Actions / Comment

£36,231.60 £14,652,264.60 The Business & Economy Team provide a
range of support to businesses including
promoting sites, land sales, addressing
issues around key infrastructure, offering
business advice, assisting businesses to
secure grant funding which in turn
supports investment by the businesses
themselves. Following extensive work at
Dalton to address flooding and more
recently with Northern Power Grid to
address power supply issues, a major
investment of £12m has been announced
by I’Ansons and National Tube
Stockholders have invested £2m in new
laser processing equipment. In addition to
this, there have been two land sales for
business development at Leeming Bar
and a number of successful small grant
applications matched with private sector
investment.
N/A

N/A

Summary reports for the 5 market towns
which compare footfall data in Q2 and Q3
will be made available early in Q4 along
with historical data for the period 20172019. It is not known yet what the figures
will be.

Page 3 of 27

Indicator
Achieve a level of Business Rate collection of
97% during 2020/21.

Target /
Benchmark

Quarter 3

97%

86.15%

YTD
86.15%

Q3 Actions / Comment
This is down on last year's collection rate
at Quarter 3 which was 88.57%.

Page 8

£9.7 million less in actual receipts has
been collected. This is due to the
government providing £11.4 million of
business rate relief to the Council as part
of the Covid-19 response. In addition, as a
result of financial difficulties, ten monthly
instalments from June to March have
been agreed for some residents. Normally
this would be from April to January and so
reverses the trend on previous years.
Some 12 month instalment plans were
also agreed.
Average collection rates are down
nationally.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 4 of 27

Indicator
Achieve a level of Council Tax collection of
95% during 2020/21.

Target /
Benchmark

Quarter 3

YTD

95%

90.81%

90.81%

Q3 Actions / Comment
This is down on last year's collection rate
at Quarter 3 which was 92.12%.
£2.1 million more has been collected in
actual receipts because the council tax for
each person has increased.

Page 9

Due to Covid-19, instalment plans have
been deferred from April 2020 to June
2020 so it is expected that the collection
rate will be lower during 2020/21 than in
previous years. In addition, as a result of
financial difficulties, ten monthly
instalments from June to March have
been agreed for some residents. Normally
this would be from April to January and so
reverses the trend on previous years.
Some 12 month instalment plans were
also agreed. Approximately 4,000
applicants have requested deferment of
instalment plans. This could potentially
impact on the collection rate going
forward.
Average collection rates are down
nationally.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 5 of 27

Indicator
Increase the number of major planning
applications determined within 13 weeks, or as
agreed with the applicant, to 80%.

Target /
Benchmark
80%

Quarter 3

YTD

69%
(9 out of
13)

74%
(23 out of 31)

Q3 Actions / Comment
In Quarter 3 some older, undetermined
applications were determined. These had
previously been pended awaiting further
information from the customer. Some of
these applications were refused and
agreements for the late determinations
were not given. As a result of this, the
overall performance statistics for Quarter
3 are lower.

Page 10

Performance around major applications is
improving and is receiving positive
feedback from customers, most notably
and recently from Lichfields, representing
BP (British Petroleum) and other
operators for a development site in Thirsk,
who have thanked officers for their efforts
and are delighted with the outcome of
their submission. The Senior Officers are
writing these applications up in a specific
order and to timescales agreed with the
Chief Planning Officer, Development
Managers and Members. Applicants are
willingly agreeing Extensions of Time
where necessary and it is anticipated that
the 2020/21 target will be met by the end
of Quarter 4.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 6 of 27

Indicator
Increase the number of minor planning
applications determined within 8 weeks, or as
agreed with the applicant, to 85%.

Target /
Benchmark

Quarter 3

YTD

85%

75.7%
(100 out of
132)

80.2%
(312 out of
389)

Q3 Actions / Comment

Page 11

In spite of staff changes and a
management re-shuffle during the year,
75.7% of applications have been
determined which exceeds the national
target of 75%. However, in Quarter 3
some older, undetermined applications
were determined. These had previously
been pended awaiting further information
from the customer. Some of these
applications were refused and agreements
for the late determinations were not given.
The overall performance statistics for
Quarter 3 are lower as a result.
Despite the Covid-19 Pandemic there has
been an increase in planning application
numbers and the fee income received for
planning applications and pre-application
advice in comparison to 2019/2020. There
has been a slight shortfall in performance
as adjustments have been made to adapt
to the lockdowns. However, extra staff
have been brought in and are settled into
their new ways of working. In addition, the
number of applications received has
eased as expected in December and
January. The majority of these will be
determined before April and therefore it is
anticipated that the 2020/21 target will be
met by the end of Quarter 4.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 7 of 27

Other activity and items of interest for this Priority during Quarter 3
 Five training providers have submitted applications expressing an interest in the development of the
Skills Village
Business
Northallerton Construction Skills Village.
&
 Hambleton District Council is continuing to work with the education sector and has joined the North
Economy
Yorkshire Learning Provider Platform.
eCampus





Building work has commenced to create a Higher Education and Further Education Centre in Block A
(the former staff Tenement building) of the Treadmills development.
The University of Sunderland and York College are working with the Council to establish local
demand and to shape the learning offer.
Funding of £725k towards the development has been requested from the Government Getting
Building Fund and conditional approval secured from the Local Enterprise Partnership.

Page 12

North
Northallerton



The Developers, Eric Wright Group, have continued to make good progress on the embankments for
the bridge

Central
Northallerton




Zetland Street works have been completed including the planting of trees.
Central Arcade has been repaved but may require sealing due to algal growth. The wall along
Central Arcade is to be rebuilt.
A contractor for the Town Square works has been secured and is due to commence on site in
January 2021.



Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 8 of 27

Other activity and items of interest for this Priority during Quarter 3
Business
&
Economy

C4DI








Page 13



Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

A working relationship continues to be developed between C4DI and Hambleton District Council.
The Steering Group continues to meet, with Councillor Malcolm Taylor as the portfolio holder for the
project.
A future online event is planned, continuing the engagement virtually with the various sectors,
businesses and the community. Events are in the planning stages for early 2021 and also for the
opening in March 2021.
Promotion of the C4DI Northallerton Digital Hub has taken place. Promotional material and
memberships are available
Chameleon won the contract for the interior fit of the C4DI Northallerton Development. Hambleton
District Council will liaise with Chameleon for the development of the artwork for the brochure, social
media and the web pages
Web pages for C4DI on Hambleton District Council’s homepage and on Hambleton District Council’s
homepage for C4DI are currently in development.
Engagement with businesses and individuals to become members of C4DI Northallerton continues.

Page 9 of 27

Other activity and items of interest for this Priority during Quarter 3
Business
&
Economy

Vibrant Market
Towns





Page 14







Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

The Vibrant Market Town Team continues to work closely with Town Councils and business
networks. This is to facilitate the safe re-opening of the High Streets in the market towns across
Hambleton and also with regard to the allocation of the £80K European Regional Development Fund
‘Re-opening High Streets Safely Fund’. A review of the five market town High Streets’ assessments
has been undertaken and new Tier 2 business information packs and adhesive floor stickers have
been delivered to all High Street businesses in the market towns and Great Ayton. Additional
advisory posters have been put up in Bedale and Northallerton in response to concerns expressed
about social distancing.
Filming is now complete for the Historic England High Street Heritage Action Zone project videos. It
is anticipated that the films will be launched on social media and through other channels early in the
new year. The purpose of the films is to raise awareness of, and encourage wider support for, the
three and a half year project. A Heritage Action Zone Delivery Manager has been appointed and will
start in post in January 2021.
A grant of £2,9834 has been awarded to Stokesley Town Council for the purchase and installation of
two noticeboards to raise awareness of the town’s retail offer and to improve ‘wayfinding’ for visitors.
A grant of £1,167 has been claimed by Thirsk Town Council to help with costs associated with the
reopening of the public toilets, along with a grant of £338 for the design of a series of heritage
interpretation panels in Castle Garth.
The Vibrant Market Town Team is working closely with the Hambleton District Council
Communications Team to ensure key messages about the Northallerton Town Square Improvement
Scheme are timely and accurate and that local businesses, market traders and key stakeholders are
kept up to date with progress.
The Vibrant Market Town Team has once again sponsored this year’s ‘Easingwold in Lights’
competition. Entries in the categories for ‘Best Christmas Lights’ and ‘Best Dressed Window’ were
judged by Carolyn Frank, Development Manager for the Federation of Small Businesses.

Page 10 of 27

Other activity and items of interest for this Priority during Quarter 3
Business
Covid-19 Grants  The Business and Economy Team has been administering the promotion of the Local Restriction
&
Support Grants (closed) and dealing with e-mail enquiries from businesses (800 emails). 132
Economy
Additional Restriction Grant applications have been received and five members of the team have
been assessing them for eligibility.

Page 15

Other Covid-19
Support



“Insight with Passion” delivered workshops to 84 businesses to support them through Covid-19 and
beyond. Videos of the workshops were shared with 300 additional businesses.

Federation of
Small
businesses



In this quarter, four applications for Federation of Small Businesses membership have been
received.

Future High
Street Fund



The Future High Street Funding bid was successful for 69% of the original request. This equates to
£6.1 million. The business case now needs to be revised to fit the funding offered.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 11 of 27

PRIORITY – Enhancing Health & Wellbeing

Page 16

Purpose:
- Improve the health and wellbeing of people
by providing and supporting community
inclusive facilities, activities, events and
interventions
- Protect consumers from health risks
relating to hazardous food, drink and water
supplies.
- Protect residents from hazardous
conditions in privately rented housing.

Outcome:
- Increased physical activity participation rates & therefore improved health
- Reduction in health threatening conditions
- Improved health & wellbeing through community events, initiatives, programmes
& activities
- Increased child safety through learning to swim
- Reduce health risks due to food safety improvements
- Reduced health risk due to non-compliant private water supplies

Indicator

Target /
Benchmark

Quarter 3

YTD

Q3 Actions / Comment

3,322

2,465

2,888

This is a year-end target and fluctuation is
anticipated throughout the year. The centres
were closed due to Covid-19 for the whole of
Quarter 1 and memberships frozen and/or
cancelled. Leisure centres re-opened on the
25 July 2020 with limited activities and
capacities due to Covid-19 distancing
restrictions. Some memberships are still
frozen and/or cancelled. A further one month
closure occurred in Quarter 3 from 05
November 2020 because of Covid-19.

Achieve health & fitness membership base of
3,322 in 2020/21.

This KPI will not be achieved because of the
impact of Covid-19. The closures and
restrictions placed upon centres mean that
many customers have cancelled their
memberships. Some have frozen their
memberships prior to returning to the centres
when they are re-open.
Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 12 of 27

Indicator
Achieve 'Learn2 Swim' membership base of
2,350 in 2020/21.

Page 17

Target /
Benchmark

Quarter 3

YTD

Q3 Actions / Comment

2,350

768

1,230

This is a year-end target and fluctuation is
anticipated throughout the year. The centres
were closed due to Covid-19 for the whole of
Quarter 1 and memberships frozen and/or
cancelled. Swimming lessons restarted in
Quarter 2 with restrictions to capacity
because of social distancing, in line with
guidance from Swim England. Some
memberships are still frozen and/or
cancelled. Quarter 2 shows active Learn 2
Swim members only. A further one month
closure occurred in Quarter 3 from 05
November 2020 due to Covid-19.
This KPI will not be achieved because of the
impact of Covid-19. The closures and
restrictions placed upon centres mean that
many customers have cancelled their
memberships. Some have frozen their
memberships prior to returning to the centres
when they are re-open.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 13 of 27

Target /
Benchmark

Successfully allocate 100% (£248,910) of
community grants in 2020/21.

100%
(£248,910)

Complete 100% of high / medium risk food
premises inspections in 2020/21.

100%
(16/16)

Page 18

Indicator

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Quarter 3

YTD

Q3 Actions / Comment

108%
108%
The Community Grants Budget for 2020/21 is
(£269,780) (£269,780) made up from the following grant funds:
Making a Difference £125,000; Hambleton
Help £48,700; Partnership Grants £63,810;
Covid-19 Community Response £11,400
(funding brought forward from Making a
Difference grant underspends in 2019/20).
£4,130 of this is still available and the grant
continues to be promoted. The majority of the
grant fund is allocated in Quarter 1 to ensure
that the budgets are spent by the end of the
financial year. In Quarter 3 an additional
£25,000 was made available and allocated to
food banks in response to the Covid-19
pandemic
31%
(5/16)

31%
(5/16)

For 2020/21, only high-risk food premises
inspections will take place because of the
effects of Covid-19. Medium risk food
business will be assessed using a remote
assessment tool and may be visited as a
result of this assessment.
This is subject to change as the service
responds to Covid-19 and following guidance
from the Food Standards Agency.
The profile for the year is:
Q1=0 Q2=0 Q3=5 Q4=11

Page 14 of 27

Indicator
Complete 100% (16 of 16) of private water
supply risk assessments in 2020/21

Page 19
Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Target /
Benchmark

Quarter 3

YTD

100%
(16/16)

0

0

Q3 Actions / Comment
There are 16 private water supply risk
assessments due. These were unable to be
carried out in Q1, Q2 or Q3 due to Covid-19
restrictions and guidance from the Drinking
Water Inspectorate. It is also now anticipated
that they will not be undertaken in Q4 for the
same reasons. This is subject to change as
the service responds to Covid-19 and any
guidance from the Drinking Water
Inspectorate changes. Many of the risk
assessments are to be carried out at
commercial premises which have not been
trading due to Coronavirus Restrictions and
therefore access is not possible.

Page 15 of 27

Page 20

Other activity and items of interest for this Priority during Quarter 3
 Covid-19 related service demands remain high, including complaints about non-compliance
Environmental Covid-19
and requests for advice and assistance.
Health
 The introduction of the tier system has created additional workload including:
o Implementing the new regulations and guidance.
o Providing further advice and support to businesses.
o Dealing with the challenges of cross tier activity. This includes, in particular, residents
from Tier Three areas visiting licensed premises in the north of the district.
 Officers have carried out monitoring visits (sometimes out of hours) to licensed premises
across the district to provide advice to business owners and assess compliance with the
restriction regulations.
 Work continues to be carried out with Public Health Officers and North Yorkshire County
Council to investigate clusters of Covid-19 cases and to provide advice and guidance to
businesses.
 There continues to be significant engagement with North Yorkshire County Council, the North
Yorkshire Resilience Forum, Public Health and Local Trading Standards to provide a coordinated multi agency approach.
 Public Health continues to lead workstreams involving Environmental Health Officers, North
Yorkshire Police and Yorkshire Ambulance Service relating to the Outbreak Control Plan for
the county. Procedures will be put in place to manage events to ensure that they are Covid-19
safe. If they are not, then the County Council can take enforcement action to prevent the event
from taking place.
 The Environmental Health Manager, as chair of the North Yorkshire Chief Environmental
Health Officer Group, will work with the Chief Trading Standards Officer to co-ordinate
arrangements in relation to enforcement of the Covid-19 regulations and the overall response
to the outbreak.
 Environmental Health Officers assisted Business and Economy with enforcement notices for
Pavement Licencing.
 Revenues and Benefits assisted Environmental Health regarding the types of businesses
which would be eligible for business grants.
 Advice and assistance were provided to a secondary school in the district regarding risk
assessment and Covid-19 secure measures.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 16 of 27

Page 21

Other activity and items of interest for this Priority during Quarter 3
Environmental Contaminated
 Two Environmental Health Officers continue to be involved with an operation with North
Health
Land
Yorkshire Police and the Ministry of Defence Police. The Recovery phase of the operation
remains ongoing and is now at a stage where enforcement responsibility must be determined
for the original site. This is to ensure that the land is remediated, and formal action is instigated
against the perpetrator. Legal advice has been sought and discussions will take place to
determine to which organisation responsibility should fall.
 Phase Three of the operation at a second site in the district is almost concluded following
actions by the Council, Public Health England, the Environment Agency and the Ministry of
Defence Police.
 The Environmental Health Service together with Licensing and ICT are continuing to work to
Management
implement the Cx Management Information System by April 2021. The planned go live date for
Information
Licensing functions in the Environmental Health service has been delayed due to pressures
System Project
created by Covid-19 and issues with the system.
 Revised implementation plans are being put in place.
 Implementing the system remotely continues to create significant challenges.
 Environmental Health Officers have started preparation for the EU Exit.
Brexit
 The service was awarded £5,000 of grant funding from the Food Standards Agency to support
EU Exit preparations.
 Advice was provided to two food manufacturers regarding new export requirements.
 Investigations were carried out into four reports of unlicensed breeders operating in the district.
Animal Welfare
Licensing
 The Air Quality Annual Status Report was submitted to the Department of Environment, Food
Air Quality
and Rural Affairs and has been approved. This Report is now published on the Council’s
website.
Energy Efficiency  The Air Source Heat Pump Scheme being delivered by Communitas is now underway.
 Hambleton has provisionally been allocated £560,000 of ‘Local Authority Delivery 2’ funding as
part of the Governments Green Homes Grant to install energy efficiency measures in properties
in the district. Partnership working with Ryedale, Scarborough, and Richmondshire District
Councils and North Yorkshire County Council is underway to establish a delivery model for this
funding.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 17 of 27

Other activity and items of interest for this Priority during Quarter 3
 Numerous detailed and complex nuisance complaints continue to add to the pressures on
Environmental Nuisance
resources, including issues with animals and noise.
Health
Housing
Standards





A block of flats was referred by North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service following a fire in
which an owner/occupier nearly died. The case involved carrying out a Housing Health and
Safety Rating System assessment for seven flats, ownership searches, liaising with the seven
owners and arranging visits. Repeated visits and several communications were also required to
provide advice to the owners when works were necessary.
A Housing Act 2004; Improvement Notice / schedule was served on the owner of a flat in
Northallerton because there was no heating and hot water after numerous communications with
the letting agent and owner.

Page 22
Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 18 of 27

PRIORITY – Caring for the Environment
Purpose:
- Maintain high quality and efficient waste and
recycling collections
- Improve customer satisfaction
- Reduce CO2 and improve energy efficiency
Indicator

Maintain a recycling rate of 50%.

Page 23

Monitor the effectiveness of the fly tipping and
littering enforcement policy.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Outcome:
- Decreased landfill waste
- Improve service to customers
- Environmental sustainability
- Clean litter environment

Target /
Benchmark

Quarter
3

YTD

50%

48.03%
(est)

51.86%
(est)

The impact of Covid-19 will be unknown
over the year and the position will
continually be monitored. However,
despite the challenges, collections have
continued and tonnages are up.

100%

100%

100%

The service is continuing to monitor fly
tipping across the district, hard hitting
signage has been implemented in trial
areas. Fixed penalty notices have been
issued and hotspots targeted, as well as
work with partners such as North
Yorkshire County Council and North
Yorkshire Police on fly tipped cannabis
farms. Extra cameras were purchased
and deployed.

Q3 Actions / Comment

Page 19 of 27

Indicator
Facilitate 52 community litter picks in 2020/21

Page 24
Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Target /
Benchmark
52

Quarter
3
54

YTD

Q3 Actions / Comment

109

Quarter 1: 20+ litter picks have been
undertaken, resident groups leave sacks
(typical litter pick contents) beside
litterbins. All volunteer groups are
reminded to ‘log’ when sacks are ready
for collection.
Monitoring is carried out via social media
for the time being.
Quarter 2: 35 litter picks totalling in
excess of 280 sacks and miscellaneous
loose items.
Quarter 3: 54 (up to 16 December 2020)
in excess of 330 sacks and miscellaneous
loose items including vehicle parts.

Page 20 of 27

Indicator
Ensure that 20 electric vehicle charging points are
provided within the district in 2020/21.

Target /
Benchmark

Quarter
3

YTD

20

0

3

Q3 Actions / Comment

Page 25

Provision of electric vehicle charging
points available to the public
Profile:
Q1 – 3 Market Place Thirsk – 1 Auction
Mart Bedale – 1 Millgate Thirsk – 1
Q2 – 0; Q3 – 8; Q4 – 9
Progress on the installation of charge
points at Applegarth, Millgate car parks
and Market Place Thirsk slowed due to
the on-going Covid-19 pandemic and
whilst awaiting the Office for Low
Emission Vehicles' response to a grant
application.
The charge points are on target to be
installed during February and March
2021.
In addition to the above, five charging
points are now available at the
Northallerton Depot for Hambleton District
Council vehicles and visitors. They are not
available to the general public.

Other activity and items of interest for this Priority during Quarter 3
 Continuing to monitor service delivery to ensure operating is within Covid-19 guidance
Waste and
Return to work
Street Scene
– Covid-19
Design and
Maintenance

General

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL





Rotary Club Garden completed
Farmers Market held eight times in Thirsk
Covid-19 test station hosted at Forum car park Northallerton, Millgate car park Thirsk and
Vaccinations hosted at the Forum
Page 21 of 27

PRIORITY – Providing a Special Place to Live
Purpose:
Outcome:
- Provide an adequate amount of housing to meet
- Housing sites are made available for market and affordable housing
the housing needs of all
- Achieve housing for all
- Provide support to residents to prevent
- Provide financial support for residents to live in the district independently
homelessness
- Provide support to residents to prevent homelessness
- Support people to lead independent lives
- Shape places across the district through the
Local Plan
Indicator

Page 26

Maintain, each year, a minimum 5-year supply of
deliverable housing sites.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Target /
Benchm
ark

Quarter
3

YTD

5yrs

9.4yrs

9.1yrs

Q3 Actions / Comment
The Inspectors at the Local Plan
Examination requested changes which are
incorporated in the figure at Quarter 3.
Hambleton District Council has 9.4 years'
supply of deliverable housing sites. The
average cumulative year to date total is 9.1
years.

Page 22 of 27

Indicator

Target /
Benchm
ark

Quarter
3

YTD

100%

Delayed

Delayed

Deliver an additional 315 new homes by April 2021.

315

123
(provision
al)

Ensure 100% of homelessness decisions are made
within 56 days.

100%

100%

Adopt the new Local Plan by March 2021.

Page 27
Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Q3 Actions / Comment
The Planning Inspectorate began
examination of the Local Plan in Quarter 3.
This took place, in spite of Covid-19
restrictions, via a blend of virtual and
physical hearings which Hambleton District
Council was amongst the first to use. The
Planning Inspectorate determined that:
Additional work was required on
Sustainability Appraisal and on the Gypsy
and Traveller Accommodation Assessment.
As a result, a further period of consultation is
required along with another hearing session.
The revised date for receipt of the Inspectors
Report is in 2021/22 Quarter 2 with adoption
in 2021/22 Quarter 3.

391
The total completions for the year to date (up
(provision to 31/12/2020) is 391 which is 76 above the
yearly requirement (+24%) of 315.
al)
The figures for Quarter 3 are provisional
because final year-end figures are still
awaited.
100%

Achieved.

Page 23 of 27

Indicator

Page 28

Quarter
3

YTD

Ensure a total of 85% of funds for disabled facilities
applications is spent.

Target /
Benchm
ark
85%
(£396,96
4)

4%
(£18,000)
Committe
d
60%
(£278,40
9)
Spent

4%
(£18,000)
Committe
d
60%
(£278,40
9)
Spent

Process new housing benefit claims within 20 days in
line with North Yorkshire authorities.

20 days

14.73
days

16.16
days

Q3 Actions / Comment
In addition to the amount spent (£278K) a
further £18K has been committed and £68K
was awarded mid - year from Central
Government thus allaying any previous
concerns around a potential shortfall.

Year to date, 224 claims processed, taking
3,619 days. Average processing time per
claim 16.16 days.
Housing Benefit is gradually being replaced
by Universal Credit. However, Universal
Credit does not deal with the more
complicated cases which still fall under the
Local Authorities' Housing Benefit function.

Process new council tax claims within 20 days in line
with North Yorkshire authorities.

20 days

20.45
days

19.06
days

Speed of processing can also be affected by
local changes to staffing and to the section.
Care should therefore be taken when making
comparisons with other Local Authorities.
Year to date, 2,825 claims processed, taking
53,848 days. Average processing time per
claim 19.06 days.
264 more new claims were received this
quarter than in same quarter for 2019/20 .

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 24 of 27

Indicator
Process housing benefit changes in circumstance
within 5 days in line with North Yorkshire authorities.

Target /
Benchm
ark

Quarter
3

5 days

3.01 days

YTD

Q3 Actions / Comment

2.69 days Year to date, 4,308 changes in
circumstances processed, taking 11,583
days. Average processing time per claim
2.69 days.

Page 29

Housing Benefit is gradually being replaced
by Universal Credit. However, Universal
Credit does not deal with the more
complicated cases which still fall under the
Local Authorities’ Housing Benefit function.
This affects the number of days taken to
process changes in circumstance.

Process council tax changes in circumstance within 5
days in line with North Yorkshire authorities.

5 days

1.86 days

Speed of processing can also be affected by
local changes to staffing and to the section.
Care should therefore be taken when making
comparisons with other Local Authorities
1.76 days Year to date, 15,655 changes processed,
taking 27,526 days. Average processing time
per claim is 1.76 days
1,747 more changes in circumstances were
processed compared with this quarter in
2019/20.

The tables below show the comparison across North Yorkshire Councils for the processing times for new claims and changes in
circumstances. Where there are ‘gaps’, this information is not available. Going forwards it is anticipated that this data may not be
available on a quarterly basis as the Department of Work & Pensions are only now meeting with Councils on a 6 monthly basis. This is
due to the ongoing roll out of Universal Credit and the change in volumes of work undertaken by Councils.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 25 of 27

NEW CLAIMS PROCESSING TIMES in days (recorded in arrears)
North Yorks
Region

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020/21 Q1

2020/21 Q2

C/Tax

H/Ben

C/Tax

H/Ben

C/Tax

H/Ben

Craven

18.49

19.52

21.02

19.63

21.28

11.31

/

/

22.30

6.42

Harrogate

25.34

22.98

26.29

23.79

26.99

23.62

33.33

24.65

24.65

22.27

HAMBLETON

25.61

20.76

15.03
17.47

15.34

13.40
10.86

17.06

18.67

17.63

18.81

15.85

14.42

11.39

11.40

20.42

15.38

22.82
17.96

21.04

19.06

20.29

26.35

12.85

15.63

34.34

23.28
26.57

25.48

27.93

27.15

N/A

N/A

27.36

16.81

16.92

14.12

17.94

8.34

9.52

9.68

Scarborough
Selby

Page 30

Richmondshire
Ryedale

17.60 19.90
(Q3 only
22.54

21.86

18.60 16.66
(Q2 only
28.60

23.96

21.83

2020/21 Q3

C/Tax H/Ben C/Tax H/Ben C/Tax

H/Ben

2020/21 Q4
C/Tax

H/Ben

CHANGE IN CIRCUMSTANCES PROCESSING TIMES in days (recorded in arrears)
North Yorks
Region

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020/21 Q1

2020/21 Q2

C/Tax

H/Ben

C/Tax

H/Ben

Craven

7.40

4.49

6.15

5.69

3.38

4.53

/

/

3.69

5.60

Harrogate

7.55

6.22

6.20

4.32

5.16

3.33

5.56

4.5

3.86

4.38

HAMBLETON

6.24

5.78

2.99

2.70

2.10

2.32

1.74

2.38

1.65

2.73

5.60(Q3
only)

4.68

6.42

5.00

6.0

3.25

9.31

4.12

15.73

5.40

3.99

4.55

5.17

3.66

3.23

2.85

2.09

3.15

1.90

3.13

Richmondshire 4.90(Q2
only)

3.29

6.37

2.89

0.70

2.99

2.08

5.27

N/A

N/A

Ryedale

6.28

5.12

3.37

1.70

2.40

1.21

1.65

1.42

2.58

Scarborough
Selby

11.98

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

2020/21 Q3

C/Tax H/Ben C/Tax H/Ben C/Tax H/Ben C/Tax

H/Ben

2020/21 Q4
C/Tax

H/Ben

Page 26 of 27

Other activity and items of interest for this Priority during Quarter 3
 The impact of Covid-19 has seen a channel shift, moving customer contact from face to face
Customer
Covid-19
to digital formats.
Services

Communications Covid-19



ICT

Application form
for Business
Grants




Year 4 garden waste collections continue until the end of March 2021 with total income on 18
December 2020 of £917,680 (102.4% of Year 3) providing 22,942 licences to 21,757
properties.
The garden waste system went live for Year 5 on 7 December 2020 creating an initial spike in
self-serve. As at 23 December 2020 the total income was £60,160, 6.6% of Year 4 income
providing 1,504 licences to 1,400 properties. 97% of Year 5 customers have self-served
online due to the main communication method being e-mail updates with an electronic link to
the new subscription service. Daily sales continue and will likely peak after the festive period.
Customer Services continue to support the residents and businesses across the district
specifically in the areas of Christmas collections of waste and recycling and the Government’s
Business Grant Support Scheme.
Covid-19 continues to impact on how services are offered and the key role of the
Communications function. This will be a priority for the Communications Team until the crisis
is over.
There is ongoing development of the Covid-19 online grant application forms to support local
businesses.
Support has been provided for Hambleton’s new website design.

Members’
Support



Multi-Factor Authentication has been enabled for Members’ devices which improves security.

Garden Waste




General

Page 31

Legal Services



Local Plan

Virtual Meetings.

Successfully supported Hybrid Local Plan meetings in the Council Chamber.

Legal



The transfer of Lambert Hospital to Herriott Hospice Homecare has been completed.

Electoral



A new annual canvass has been completed (subject to the additional restrictions as a result of
Covid-19) and the electoral register was published on 1 December 2020. The Electoral
Services Team is seeking to carry out further household checks in Quarter 4 to ensure that the
electoral register is accurate for the May 2021 elections.

Scrutiny Performance 2020-21 Q3 FINAL

Page 27 of 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Hambleton District Council
Report to:

Scrutiny Committee
18 February 2021

From:

Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 Officer)

Subject:

Review of Risk Management – 2020/21 Q3

Wards Affected:

All Wards

1.0

Purpose and Background

1.1

The principles of the CIPFA Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government require Hambleton District Council to be responsible for putting in
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the
effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management
of risk.

1.2

The Council has a robust risk management process in place which includes a
comprehensive risk register. The register captures all risks identified as presenting
a threat or opportunity which may impact the Council’s service delivery. The
Council’s Risk Management Framework provides information and guidance on the
authority’s risk appetite and risk management process. The updated Risk
Management Framework was approved by Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee on 22 October 2019 and by Council on 17 December 2019.

1.3

All risks are reviewed by the relevant service manager on a quarterly basis to reflect
upon their appropriateness and the adequacy of a mitigating action plan.

1.4

The Strategic Risk Management Group meets quarterly to drive all aspects of risk
management compliance for the authority, supporting the quarterly monitoring roles
performed by Management Team and the Scrutiny Committee. The group act as
risk ‘champions’ ensuring risk management has an appropriate profile and sufficient
focus on the corporate agenda.

1.5

In the event that the Scrutiny Committee questions an individual risk this would be
raised at Council. However, if Scrutiny Committee wanted to raise a query
surrounding the process and control of risks then this would be raised with Audit,
Governance and Standards Committee. Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee has the overall responsibility for risk but the quarterly monitoring scrutiny
role is delegated to Scrutiny Committee.

1.6

Management Team conduct an annual review at Quarter 4 of the Council’s full risk
register which satisfies the Council’s audit obligations and demonstrates good
corporate governance by ensuring that senior management are actively engaged
with the Council’s risk management process.

Page 33

1.7

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee receive the Risk Register annually in
October and also if significant changes are made, on an adhoc basis.

1.8

The process of managing risk is approved by Audit, Governance & Standards
Committee on an annual basis in the Annual Governance Statement. This was
included in the 2019/20 statement of accounts published on the website on 30 June
2020 and approved by the Annual, Governance and Standards Committee on 20
October 2020. This was later than it would normally be due to Covid-19 in line with
the legislation.

2.0

Risk Management Process

2.1

In Q3, 144 risks were changed, 25 new risks were identified and no risks were
closed. Of the new risks, 15 relate to Fraud and Corruption and one relates to
Legislative Changes following Brexit. The authority currently holds a total of
562 active risks across all service areas.

2.2

Extracts of the current risk register displaying active Corporate Risks at Q3 are
attached at Annex A, Key Corporate Project Risks are attached at Annex B and
Service Risks with a Net Risk Threshold of 12 or above are attached at Annex C.

3.0

Risk Management

3.1

There are no risks associated with the recommendations of this report.

4.0

Recommendations

4.1

It is recommended that the Committee note:
(1)

Annex A

HDC Corporate Risks

(2)

Annex B

HDC Key Corporate Project Risks

(3)

Annex C

HDC Service Risks with a Net Risk Threshold of 12 or
Above.

Louise Branford-White
Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 officer)
Background Papers:

Internal Audit Report - Annual Review of the Risk Management
Strategy
Department Quarterly Risk Register Review

Author ref:

Louise Branford-White
Director of Finance and Commercial (s151officer)
Direct Line No: (01609) 767024
Jacky Byrne
Performance and Improvement Officer
Direct Line No: (01609) 767034

Page 34

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service
Risk
Director / Manager
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

All
Service
Managers

2x5

10

Med • HDC implements suitable arrangements where all
services work to the Council's Health and Safety Policy
and lone workng procedures.
• Service action plans in place including:
- Specific service risk assessments & practices in
place
- All relevant staff receive Health & Safety training
- A system of monitoring and review is in place
where the corporate Health & Safety Group monitor
risk assessment management and associated Key
Performance Indicator's. Audits of lone working
practices and violence and aggression in the
workplace are being carried out by North Yorkshire
County Council's Health and Safety Adviser in Q3 and
Q4 (in abeyance due to Covid. Will continue once
restrictions ease).
•The Civic Centre recovery plan and risk assessment
reflect the requirements of COVID 19. This has been
mirrored for other workplaces such as the depot. Lone
working is supported by Service Managers with their
staff who are working from home. Service Managers
are aware of the importance of knowing whether staff
are at work or at home and are taking measures to
ensure their staff's health and safety. Specific Covid
management team meetings are in place to ensure
that plans are up to date.

On-going

1x3

3

Low

254 Health & Safety Workplace Risk
Assessment -Failure to identify,
implement and review the annual
Workplace Health & Safety Risk
Assessment programme leads to
potential physical risk and/or substandard service, performance,
financial, environmental and
reputational losses and legal
challenge.

All
Service
Managers

5x5

25

High Each service to implement their service specific action
plan to undertake service risk assessments and
workplace inspections annually. Services to work to
the HDC Health & Safety Policy and arrangements for
risk assessments. Professional support is bought in
from NYCC Health and Safety Team under a three
yearly service level agreement. There is a corporate
performance indicator to complete 100% of risk
assessments in key areas. This is measured by the
Health and Safety Officer and reported to the
corporate Health and Safety Group quarterly. Some
risk assessment reviews may be late in Q3 2020/21
due to Covid considerations. This does not affect the
overall risk. Risk assessment KPI monitoring resumed
in Q2.

Ongoing

1x5

5

Low

Page 35

157 Health & Safety Lone Working
Paul
Staines
Practices are not as effective as
they should be leading to potential
physical risk and/or sub-standard
service, performance, financial and
reputational losses and legal
challenge.

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Paul
Staines

1/10

26/01/21

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service
Risk
Director / Manager
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

All
Service
Managers

1x5

5

512 Failure to follow General Data
Gary
Nelson
Protection Regulation
Requirements and failure to follow
the Council's Information Policy
leads to a violation of Data
Protection Act which could lead to
a fine by the Information
Commissioner's Office and creates
a risk of legal challenge and
reputational damage where
regulations are not complied with.

Laura
Venn &
All
Services

2x3

6

Page 36

407 Failure to develop and maintain an Paul
Staines
effective Business Continuity
Plan leads to lack of resilience or
inability to access HDC services
resulting in loss of service or failure
of service delivery.

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

Med Business continuity policy, procedure and plans are in Review Business Continuity
place across the organisation and all service
Plans Q4
managers are engaged. ICT liaise with services to
provide resilience in line with the business needs.
Business Continuity plans are reviewed annually as
part of service planning. HDC buy in specialist advice
from NYCC Resilience and Emergencies Team.
Covid 19 is still in the response phase , though
measures are being taken to move into recovery, this
is a fluid situation and will change according to
government guidance. A full review of the authority’s
Business Continuity arrangements, especially as they
relate to pandemics, will be scheduled once recovery
has been settled. This will be led by Paul Staines with
advice from NYCC Resilience and Emergencies
Team. The timescale is dependent upon a number of
factors including the possibility of a second or even
third wave.
Consideration is being given to how service managers
would respond to a situation in which IT systems are
unavailable and the majority of staff are working from
home.
Med Retention and destruction of documentation in
On going
accordance with the Information Asset Register.
Annual review of service area records management in
line with Document Retention Policy and all staff to
receive Data Protection training/ General Data
Protection Regulation updates.

2/10

1x3

3

Low

2x2

4

Low

26/01/21

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service
Risk
Director / Manager
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

Page 37

522 Failure of the Council's website or Mick
Jewitt
failure to maintain current/correct
information removes the principal
communication and compliance
tool, blocks transparency and
denies residents' payment facilities
and emergency information
resource, leading to reputational,
legal and financial loss.

Anna
Wilkes
and all
service
managers

3x3

9

Med Website hosted and supported offsite to minimise risk
and current information maintained and reviewed on a
regular basis.
Work has been undertaken on updating the web
platform to ensure compliance with web accessibility
legislation introduced September 2020. There were
delays introduced due to the Covid-19 response but
the new web platform went live in December 2020.
Individual action plans within services established to
reduce gross risk - further progress (as planned)
needed with these to decrease the likelihood score
further with an expectation that this will lead to a net
risk of 1x3 during Q4.

Ongoing

2x3

6

Med

602 Failure to comply with the Public
Gary
Sector Equality Duty will put the Nelson
organisation at risk of legal
challenge and reputational damage

Lynne
Halls &
All
Services

3x4

12

High Service Managers with advice and guidance from
Human Resourses will ensure that the General and
Specific requirements of the Public Sector Equality
Duty are met. All Managers and Staff who follow the
requirements of the Equality and Diversity Policy and
Procedure and take part in any relevant training as
listed in Appendix B of the Learning and Development
Policy.

Ongoing

1x3

3

Low

1x4

4

Low Complete and challenge the Budget setting process,
generate income, create efficiency savings, consider
reduction to the current budget, monitor and manage
the position. Report to Cabinet and Council on an
annual basis prior to the new financial year and
monitor on a quarterly basis.
The financial impacts of COVID 19 are continually
monitored and an updated position is provided in the
Qtr 3 2020/21Revenue Monitoring Report at Cabinet in
February 2021. The financial strategy will be updated
at February 2021 Cabinet for the 2021/22 financial
year further to the Chancellor's announcement on
25/11/2020 and the settlement being provided to all
Local Authorities from Government in December 2020.

Annually - February and
Quarterly monitoring

1x3

3

Low

709 Failure to set a balanced Annual
Louise
Saskia
Budget which is reflected in the 10 Branford- Calton
White
year Financial Strategy.

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

3/10

26/01/21

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service
Risk
Director / Manager
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

Page 38

798 Staff attendance - Failure to
Gary
effectively manage staff attendance Nelson
at work leads to potential physical
risk, reduced staffing levels and/or
sub-standard service with regards
to possible financial, environmental
and reputational losses and legal
challenge.

Lynne
Halls &
All
Services

2x3

6

Med Service Managers with advice and guidance from
Human Resourses will manage the attendance of staff
so contractual requirements are met. This will involve
invoking policies such as Sickness Absence
Management, Leave, Flexi Time, Capability and
Recruitment and Selection.

Ongoing

1x3

3

Low

800 Training and Development Gary
Nelson
Failure to plan, resource and
implement and ensure attendance
at mandatory corporate training
and development (in line with
Appendix B of the Learning and
Development Policy and
Procedure) for employees leads to
potential physical risk and/or substandard service with regards to
possible financial, environmental
and reputational losses and legal
challenge

Lynne
Halls &
All
Services

1x3

3

Low Human Resourses will liaise with Service Managers to
ensure that any mandatory training is scheduled onto
the Learning and Development Calendar. Human
Resourses will also work with Service Managers to
ensure staff attend corporate mandatory learning and
development activities. Human Resourses will also
work with Service Managers to resolve issues of nonattendance of departmental mandatory learning and
development.

Ongoing

1x3

3

Low

814 Failure to prepare for a No Deal
Paul
Staines
Brexit leads to a disruption to
services and an inability to service
local needs • Fuel shortages affect refuse
collection
• Fuel shortages affect individuals
ability to get to work
• Extra demand for council services
due to hardship
• Internal capacity to deal with
changes in regulatory services
• Failure to manage
communications with
businesses/community/voluntary
leads to reputational damage

Paul
Staines

3x4

12

High • Engage with Local Resilience Forum partners at a
strategic and tactical level using established
emergency planning protocols
• Report by exception to Yorkshire and Humber lead
Brexit Officers through Leeds City Council
• Use Local Government Association toolkit for
communication
• Communicate with service managers forum to ensure
business continuity plans reflect the risk.
•Corporate Brexit Plan approved by Management
Team 16/10/2019.
•Reviewed by PS October 2020, Service managers to
review detail in December 2020.
•Deal secured December 2020. Implications are being
worked through in relevant business areas.

Ongoing

1x3

3

Low

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

4/10

26/01/21

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service
Risk
Director / Manager
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

823 Failure to take action on climate
Paul
change leads to adverse impacts Staines
on the local and global environment
and damages the council’s
reputation.

All
Service
Managers

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

3x5

15

High A schedule has been drawn up documenting all
services' carbon saving measures and plans to reduce
carbon in the future. Working with other authorities
regionally and sub regionally on positive actions, also
supporting communities to take positive actions.
Internal working group has been established and is
baselining energy usage. A draft strategy was
presented to Management Team in Oct 2020.
Following the announcement of local government reorganisation this project is in abeyance.
Application made to the Government's DeCarbonisation Fund in January 2021.
A further report will go to Management Team in
January 2021.

Continuously monitored
and reviewed

2x4

8

Med

Page 39

824 Cyber Security - Cyber-attack
leads to loss of key ICT
infrastructure resulting in reduced
ability to provide ICT Services,
occurring financial loss and
reputational damage

Louise
Jenny
Branford- Pan
White

3x5

15

High • Compulsory annual Cyber Security training for all
users •Procedure to verify each user and issue
minimum required access rights•Manage privileged
access • Annual IT Health Check and remedial work
PSN (Public Services Network) compliant • Strong
password policies are in place •Regularly test Disaster
Recovery and Business Continuity Plan • Cyber
Security Incident Management Plan in place • Annual
review of the Information Security Policy • Participate
in WARP (Warning, Advice and Reporting Point)
Yorkshire group to share knowledge and information
with other Councils • Cyber Liability Insurance is in
place.

Ongoing

2x5

10

Med

833 Local Government Reorganisation

Justin
Ives

3x5

15

High Whilst the decision to re-organise local government in
North Yorkshire is beyond the Councils control, there
are steps that can and will be taken to ensure that non
statutory services provided for the residents and
businesses of Hambleton are protected.

Jan-21

3x3

9

Med

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

All
Directors

5/10

26/01/21

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service
Risk
Director / Manager
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

834 Staff Capacity – Failure to provide Steve
Lister
sufficient staff of a suitable
competence to deliver services and
the Council Plan leads to difficulties
in implementation of the corporate
agenda and/or sub-standard
service, performance, financial,
environmental and reputational
losses and legal challenge.

Page 40
Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

All
Service
Managers

3x6

18

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

High • Directors/Service Managers to regularly review their
service requirements and available resources
• Corporate capacity of the organisation to deliver the
Council Plan projects and services is reviewed
frequently with consideration being given to capacity
by Service Managers and Directors, Programme
Management Board and Management Team. This
takes account of Local Government Re-Organisation,
Covid-19 and other strategic pressure.
• Regular management consideration of the various
performance monitoring and review mechanisms to
ensure delivery is on target
• Continual review in light of Covid-19 as a result of the
regular Government announcements for increased
Local Government support. In the longer term this is
connected with Disaster Recovery and Business
Continuity planning and of clear importance with
regards the health and well being of all staff.
•There is a moratorium on recruitment with exceptions
being considered by Management Team.
•Management Team to undertake a review of Council
priorities and capacity in Q4 2020-21

6/10

Ongoing

2x3

6

Med

Ongoing

Quarterly review
Ongoing

Ongoing
Ongoing

26/01/21

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service
Risk
Director / Manager
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

835 Business interruption due to
coronavirus

Paul
Staines

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

Paul
Staines

3x5

15

High •Central government plans in place- monitor daily
•North Yorkshire Local resilience Forum (NYLRF)
procedures. Strategic Co-ordination Group (SCG) and
Tactical Co-ordination Group (TCG) have now stood
up again due to the severity of the second spike.
•Service Managers to review business continuity plans
and plan for 30% absence in conjunction with Brexit
and winter flu contingencies.
•All office based staff have the capacity for home and
mobile working.
•Regular staff briefings carried out through newsletters
and briefings to Service Manager Forum.
•On site teams are provided with cleansing gels, wipes
etc
•Service Managers to keep up to date with guidance
via GOV.UK and England.nhs.co.uk
•Procedures are in place to manage a return to work,
corporate risk assessment drawn up, plans in place for
vulnerable staff and their relatives, working from home
procedures and risk assessments completed.
Outbreak management plans in place for Civic Centre.
•HDC has its own recovery plan, that is reviewed
monthly and is fed into the county wide recovery
strategy where it is reviewed monthly.

Apr-21

2x5

10

Med

All
Directors

3x5

15

High ▪ Improve the focus on the delivery of projects in the
short timescale available.
▪ Good contingency planning and regular meetings.
▪ Sharing of knowledge and information in a central
location.
▪ Good record keeping and documented procedure
notes.
▪ Continue to make Hambleton an attractive place to
work to encourage the retention of key employees.
▪ Keep staff informed of developments in a timely
manner.
▪ Establish and retain good relationships with other
stakeholders.
▪ Ensure that business continuity planning is robust.
▪ Maintain a positive attitude and approach to Local
Government Re-organisation.

Oct-20

2x2

4

Low

Page 41
841 Local Government ReJustin
Ives
organisation - Failure to deliver
the projects in the council plan due
to loss of key staff leads to
significant financial losses,
reputational damage and potential
legal challenge.

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

7/10

26/01/21

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service
Risk
Director / Manager
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

Page 42

842 Local Government ReJustin
Ives
organisation - Failure to review
the effects of the risks involved with
Local Government Re-organisation
on a regular basis leads to
ineffective planning, resourcing and
implementing of the corporate
objectives.

All
Service
Managers

2x2

4

Low ▪ All risks are considered on a quarterly basis by
Service Managers as part of the quarterly risk
management review.
▪ The requirement to assess the Local Government Reorganisation risks will be highlighted as part of this
process.
▪ Service Managers must make the review of Local
Government Re-organisation risks a priority.
▪ Risks are reviewed quarterly by Management Team,
Strategic Risk Management Group and Scrutiny
Committee. Checks are therefore in place to ensure
that a review will occur.

Oct-20

1x1

1

Low

843 Local Government ReJustin
organisation - Failure to maintain Ives
morale and motivation amongst
staff leads to reduced performance,
sub-standard service, possible
sickness and possible resignation
with potential reputational damage
and financial losses.

All
Directors

4x2

8

Med ▪ Re-assurance that Hambleton District Council will
take an active role in the re-organisation process to
ensure that the interests of staff are appropriately
represented.
▪ Keep staff informed of developments in a timely
manner.
▪ Provision of incentives to retain staff.
▪ Continue to support and invest in staff and to develop
their knowledge and skills to motivate them in the
current situation and prepare them for what the future
holds.
▪ Understand what makes Hambleton an attractive
place to work and continue to work with staff to carry
this forward.
▪ Communicate regularly with staff on a personal level
to resolve issues.
▪ Maintain a positive attitude and approach to Local
Government Re-organisation.

Oct-20

2x1

2

Low

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

8/10

26/01/21

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service
Risk
Director / Manager
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

844 A lack of knowledge and
Louise
All
Branford- Service
application surrounding the
White
Managers
prevention of fraud and
corruption, increases the
possibility of the Council's
susceptibility to risk leading to loss
of funds and reputational damage.
Fraud risks include but not
exclusively, commissioning of
services, procurement, payroll,
identity fraud, council tax, business
rates, grants, disabled facility
grants, insurance fraud, housing
benefit/council tax reduction, cyber
enabled fraud.

Page 43
Fraud and corruption continued.

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

2x4

8

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

Med •A fraud risk assessment has been undertaken against
the fraud and corruption risks along with horizon
scanning of future potential risks.
•A counter fraud and corruption strategy exists which
has been communicated throughout.
•Arrangements are in place to ensure probity and
propriety in the conduct of business.
•Successful cases of proven fraud / corruption are
routinely publicised to raise awareness.
•The Council has put in place arrangements to prevent
and detect fraud and corruption and also a mechanism
for ensuring that this is effective and is reported to
committee.
•Members and staff are aware of the need to make
appropriate disclosures of gifts, hospitality and
business. This is checked by auditors and reported to
committee.
•There is a programme of works to ensure a strong
counter fraud culture across all department and
delivery agents led by counter fraud experts.
•An independent whistle-blowing policy exists.
•Aspects of fraud are included in HR policies including
the flexi-time policy. Recruitment / selection includes
full ID checks
•An annual fraud plan covers all areas of Council
business and includes activities undertaken by
contractors and third parties or voluntary sector
activities.
•Professionally trained fraud officers have unfettered
access to premises and documents for the purposes
of counter fraud investigation.
•All allegations of fraud and corruption are risk
assessed.
•The fraud and corruption response plan covers all
areas of counter fraud work; prevention, detection,
investigation, sanctions and redress.
•Data is shared across services and with other
enforcement agencies.

9/10

Apr-21

1x2

2

Low

26/01/21

Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service
Risk
Director / Manager
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

854 Failure to implement Brexit
legislative changes leads to a
disruption to services and an
inability to service local needs • Internal capacity to deal with
changes in regulatory services
• Failure to manage
communications with
businesses/community/voluntary
leads to reputational damage

Paul
Staines

All
Service
Managers

2x3

6

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Likeliho Score Risk
od :
Level

Med • Engage with Local Resilience Forum partners at a
strategic and tactical level using established
emergency planning protocols.
• Communicate with service managers forum to ensure
business continuity plans reflect the risk.
• Service managers to review legislative changes and
implement necessary service changes.

Apr-21

1x3

3

Low

Page 44
Annex A Corporate Risks 2020-21 Q3

10/10

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

629 Northallerton Bridge and Road
Business &
Development -North Northallerton Economy
project slippage: unutilised grant
funding is lost if it cannot be used
in line with the timetable set out in
the funding agreement

Mick
Jewitt

Nicole
Patterson &
Sam
Swinbank

3x5

15

High The Council is working closely with the Developer
Consortium and the relevant stakeholders to ensure
the project can be delivered on time. Obligations on
project delivery will seek to pass on risk of project
slippage to Developer Consortium to mitigate risk to
the Council. Project slippage has forced the need for a
contract variation for the Local Enterprise Partnership
Local Grant Funding. The Local Enterprise Partnership
has agreed this and the variation – the agreement
allows until October 2021 for the bridge to be
delivered. A condition of the agreement is to ensure all
Local Growth Fund is spent and evidenced by end of
March 2021. As at 14/12/20 £756,409.87 of
expenditure, or provisions of suitable evidence of
expenditure remains

Mar-21

2x6

12

High

631 Northallerton Bridge and Road
Business &
Development -North Northallerton Economy
Development project proceeds but
its viability is detrimentally affected
by loss of grant. Other
development costs would have to
be reduced to make the project
viable.

Mick
Jewitt

Nicole
Patterson &
Sam
Swinbank

2x5

10

Med Risk has reduced on receipt of Local Enterprise
Partnership Grant. Need to continue to monitor
affordable & develop margin and viability for affordable
housing. Project variation referenced at risk 629 will
maintain the mitigation of this risk.
Progress kept under review through quarterly strategic
project monitoring and as part of quarterly
performance review and risk management review
process.

2028

1x5

5

Med

632 Northallerton Bridge and Road
Business &
Development -North Northallerton Economy
Project is delayed or stalls
completely, adversely affecting the
Council's supply of housing and
employment land.

Mick
Jewitt

Nicole
Patterson &
Sam
Swinbank

5x5

25

High The situation is monitored and regular communication
maintained with the developer consortium and
stakeholders to ensure delivery of project.
Progress kept under review through quarterly strategic
project monitoring and as part of quarterly
performance review and risk management review
process.

2028

3x5

15

High

Driving Economic Vitality
Northallerton Bridge and Road Development

Page 45

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

1/11

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Central Northallerton Redevelopment
4x4

16

High The development of the Treadmills site is split
between phase 1 and phase 2. Phase 1 is open to the
public where Lidl, Iceland are operating and Unit 1 is
available for Let. The financial position of the
development is monitored at 2 monthly internal
meetings and the Accounts sent to Cabinet on a
quarterly basis as part of the Capital programme
monitoring report. The profit in relation to the
development of Phase 1 will be included in the
reserves of the Council in Qtr. 4. Phase 2 of the
development is underway where regular reports are
written to Cabinet to provide an updated position. The
next report is due in February 2021.

Quarterly

3x4

12

High

739 Central Northallerton
Commercial Louise
Hannah
Branford- Heinemann
Redevelopment - The site is not
White
developed to reflect the aspirations
of the Council

4x5

20

High 1.Central Northallerton Development Company Limited
Board meets every 2 months.
2.Chief Executive & Deputy Leader represent the
interest of the Council on this board.
3.Internal Board meeting reviews, monitors and
suggests actions - meets every 6 weeks.
4.Future High Streets Funding has been provisionally
approved allowing for the last phase (new built) to
progress
5. Regular reports are provided to Cabinet on the
development of the Treadmills site, with the next report
updating the position in February 2021

6 weekly monitoring,
completion date summer
2020

3x4

12

High

793 Central Northallerton
Commercial Mick
Jewitt
Redevelopment -Treadmills
Purchase Phase 1 - Changes in the
retail market that impact on our
investment including financial
difficulties of the tenants

Hannah
Heinemann

4x4

16

High Monitor at the Programme Management Board and
Project Group and agree appropriate asset
management strategy where appropriate.

Monthly monitoring

3x4

12

High

804 Central Northallerton
Commercial Mick
Jewitt
Redevelopment – Increase in cost
of the project once works begin due
to unforeseen circumstances

Hannah
Heinemann

4x4

16

High Manage project to identify issues early and identify
parts of project that can be adapted. Secure additional
external funding where possible.

Monitoring Monthly as
Project progresses

3x4

12

High

805 Central Northallerton
Redevelopment – The Council
doesn’t achieve the best financial
return.

Hannah
Heinemann

4x3

12

High Communicate the wider economic and community
benefits.
Members would be updated at the earliest available
opportunity through Cabinet and Council.

6 weekly monitoring

4x3

12

High

Page 46

738 Central Northallerton
Commercial Louise
Hannah
Branford- Heinemann
Redevelopment - The returns to
White
the Council that are expected from
the development are not received

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Commercial Mick
Jewitt

2/11

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Page 47

806 Central Northallerton
Commercial Mick
Jewitt
Redevelopment – Not possible to
deliver the preferred scheme
because of lack of retail and leisure
pre-lets or viability.

Hannah
Heinemann

3x4

12

High Change to ‘Variant’ scheme or review alternative
options when the market is volatile.

6 weekly monitoring

3x4

12

High

807 Central Northallerton
Commercial Mick
Jewitt
Redevelopment – The prison site
is not successfully developed
because developers consider the
listed buildings are too great a risk.

Hannah
Heinemann

3x4

12

High Undertake a detailed study showing uses and
alterations that are possible and acceptable to
promote developer confidence.

6 weekly monitoring

3x4

12

High

808 Central Northallerton
Commercial Mick
Jewitt
Redevelopment – Crosby Road –
The Council loses income.

Hannah
Heinemann

3x4

12

High Consider other actions for improving income. Identify
additional commercial projects, savings and
efficiencies across the Council.

6 weekly monitoring

3x4

12

High

810 Central Northallerton
Commercial Mick
Jewitt
Redevelopment – Crosby Road –
Police parking is displaced from the
Crosby Road Car Park.

Hannah
Heinemann

3x4

12

High Central Northallerton Development Company Limited
have agreed arrangements with the Police.

6 weekly monitoring

2x4

8

Med

825 Central Northallerton
Redevelopment - The income
generated from the asset
(Treadmills Phase 2) does not
cover the Council’s finance costs
due to voids or low rents and the
cost of management

Commercial Mick
Jewitt

Hannah
Heinemann

4x5

20

High Monitor the income stream closely and maximise
commercial income. Seek other sources of funding
such as the Future High Street Fund.
Keep members appraised of any future issues.

6 weekly monitoring

3x4

12

High

826 Central Northallerton
Commercial Mick
Jewitt
Redevelopment - Negative
publicity about Council expenditure
to support the scheme (Treadmills
Phase 2)and criticism from other
businesses

Hannah
Heinemann

4x4

16

High Proactive communication plan and good media
engagement regarding the wider economic and
community benefits to the area

6 weekly monitoring

4x3

12

High

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

3/11

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Mick
Jewitt

Nicole
Patterson /
Sam
Swinbank

3x5

15

High Establish Community Working Group later in 2020 to
allow issues to be raised and to be addressed as part
of the Scheme Development Stage. This is following
the work on the Local Plan and the planning
Inspectors feedback. Masterplan - in consultation with
the community

Autumn 2020

3x4

12

High

Design &
Steve
Maintenance Lister
(incl Public
Lighting)

Clive
Thornton

3x4

12

High Economic assessment in 2017 indicated limited if any
impact on economy due to relief road. On-going
monitoring of economic vibrancy of town. Review in
2020/21 but likelihood that no further action will be
undertaken other than coach parking provision being
incorporated at Bridge Street Car Park Bedale

Mar-21

3x2

6

Med

816 Car Park Improvement Scheme - Design &
Steve
Maintenance Lister
Failure to deliver the project in
accordance with the programme
leads loss of reputation

Clive
Thornton

3x4

12

High The delivery of the scheme has been significantly
impacted upon by the Covid-19 outbreak. This has
lead to a revised delivery timescale of March 2021. All
appropriate mitigatory actions have been undertaken
and approval of the Car Parking Order is awaited from
NYCC. HDC is liaising directly with NYCC to ensure
efficiency of process.

Mar-21

3x3

9

Med

817 Car Park Improvement Scheme - Design &
Steve
Maintenance Lister
Pay and Display income below
budget due to changes in payment
methods, parking periods and
tariffs

Clive
Thornton

3x4

12

High See Risk 816. Car parks have been greatly impacted
by Covid-19. A longer term approach to monitoring
and review will be undertaken.

Oct-21

2x3

6

Med

Leeming Bar Employment Site
750 Leeming Bar Employment Site – Business &
Economy
Community objection to the
scheme

Car Park Improvement Scheme
615 Car Park Improvement Scheme Bedale Gateway Car Park - Inability
to deliver Bedale Gateway Car
Park project leads to long-term
damage to local economy through
loss of visitors and trade.

Page 48

Dalton Utilities Improvement
Pro-active communications role by the Council between businesses and NPG (Northern Power Grid)

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

4/11

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Enhancing Health & Wellbeing
Northallerton Sports Village
699 Northallerton Sports Village Leisure &
Steve
Funding Plan cannot be resourced Communities Lister
sufficiently to develop the village as
intended (greater risk to phases
after phase 1)

Lisa Wilson

4x4

16

High • Built Facilities, Playing Pitch and Open Spaces
strategies have been produced to evidence the need
for more sports provision in Northallerton
• Section 106 funds have been secured (£464k) and
Community Infrastructure Levy funding (£310k); and
European Regional Development Fund application has
been successful for £503, 706k
• National Governing Bodies will be consulted in a
timely fashion

2023

2x4

8

Med

Lisa Wilson

4x4

16

High • Built Facilities, Playing Pitch and Open Spaces
strategies have been produced to evidence the need
for more sports provision in Thirsk
• National Governing Bodies will be consulted in a
timely fashion – meeting held with the Football
Foundation and an application will be submitted in
Spring 2021
• The council has purchased a Grant Finder product

2022

2x3

6

Med

Sowerby Sports Village

Page 49

745 Sowerby Sports Village (Future
Phases) - Funding Plan cannot be
resourced sufficiently to develop
the village as intended

Leisure &
Steve
Communities Lister

Thirsk & Sowerby Leisure Centre Improvements
820 Thirsk & Sowerby Leisure Centre Leisure &
Steve
Communities Lister
Improvements - .A contract to
deliver the improved facilities was
signed on 23 December 2020. A
new range of risks has been
identified and will be reviewed at
Q4.

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Colin
Winfield

Aug-21

5/11

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Community Leisure Facilities Improvements
821 Community Leisure Facilities
Leisure &
Steve
Communities Lister
Improvements - Without a
planned approach to investment
and development of facilities there
will be a deterioration in service
performance, financial and
reputational losses and a negative
impact upon the health and wellbeing of residents/customers.

Colin
Winfield/Da
ve
Ashbridge

4x4

16

High • Develop and implement a planned approach to
investment and development of leisure facilities.
• SLC gym refurbishment carried out, further work
planned for 2020/21 Easingwold sports hall and 3g
now open
• Funding agreed to carry out developments at Bedale
Leisure Centre.

2023

2x3

6

Med

Lisa
Wilson/Colin
Winfield

3x3

9

Med • Deliver a policy to support the provision of events
and legacy projects for the district
• Comprehensively consider the opportunities that
arise from individual events
• Significant impact from Covid-19

2023

2x3

6

Med

811 Crematorium Project - Increase in Commercial Mick
Jewitt
costs of the project once design
has been developed and fully
costed.

Hannah
Heinemann

4x4

16

High Manage project to identify issues early and identify
parts of project that can be adapted. Carry out value
engineering exercise with the consultant team.

Monitoring Monthly as
Project progresses

3x4

12

High

813 Crematorium Project - The
Commercial Mick
Jewitt
income from the service is less
than expected and/or the operating
costs are higher than anticipated.

Hannah
Heinemann

4x4

16

High Develop KPIs, monitor and implement improvement
plans. Identify issues early.
Report to Members at the earliest opportunity.

Monitoring Monthly as
Project progresses

3x4

12

High

Events and Legacy Programme

Page 50

822 Events and Legacy Programme - Leisure &
Steve
Communities Lister
The Council fails to properly
consider or implement events, or
their legacy, for the district that are
consistent with its aspirations and
therefore misses out on
improvement opportunities for its
residents
Caring for the Environment
Crematorium Project

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

6/11

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Renewable Energy
827 Renewable Energy - New project Design &
Paul
as approved in the 2019-23 Council Maintenance Staines
Plan in September 2019.
Failure to develop an energy
strategy to set out how the Council
plans, manages and adapts to
meet its energy needs leads to
reputational damage.

4x3

12

High Set up Climate Action Group.
Identify and investigate opportunities to obtain energy
from renewable sources.
Use regional network of officers to baseline existing
usage and look for shared aproaches and projects.
A draft strategy was presented to Management team
in Oct 2020.
Group meetings paused for 2020/21
Following the announcement of local government reorganisation this project is in abeyance.
Application made to the Government's DeCarbonisation Fund in January 2021
A further draft strategy is to be presented to
Management Team in January 2021.

Quarterly

2x3

6

Med

Page 51
Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

7/11

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Electric Charging Points

Page 52

828 Electric Charging Points - New
Design &
Steven
project as approved in the 2019-23 Maintenance Lister
Council Plan in September 2019.
The phased project will be
developed during 2020-21 and 2122.
Failure to deliver a strategy for the
introduction of an electric vehicle
charging infrastructure leads to
reputational damage to the Council

Clive
Thornton

3x3

9

Med Development of electric vehicle charging infrastructure
strategy included within the Car Park Improvement
Scheme.
Consultants appointed to provide support
development and implementation of the Car Park
Improvement Plan.
Identify and be open to opportunities outside of the car
park improvement scheme to provide or facilitate the
introduction of charging infrastructure and include
within strategy.
Priority locations have been identified.
Monitor and review. Significant impact of COVID-19 on
scheme delivery

Sep-21

2x2

4

Low

829 Electric Charging Points - Failure Design &
Steven
to deliver an initial phase of electric Maintenance Lister
vehicle charging infrastructure in
the District means the Council fails
to meet the changing needs and
expectations of residents and
visitors

Clive
Thornton

3x3

9

Med Introduction of initial phase of charging infrastructure
included within the Car Park Improvement Scheme.
Consultants appointed to provide support for the
development and implementation of the Car Park
Improvement Plan including the provision of charging
infrastructure.
Identify and be open to opportunities outside of the car
park improvement scheme to provide or facilitate the
introduction of charging infrastructure.
Priority locations have been identified.

Sep-21

2x2

4

Low

Gary
Brown/Sue
Seddon

4x5

20

High It is no longer planned to investigate depot relocation,
due to local government re-organisation. Arcadis
report showed all risks to be low or very low from
residual asbestos on site. Actions have been taken to
remove asbestos risk as recommended in the Arcadis
Option Appraisal Report, only outstanding action is to
patch the roof, this work is due Q3.
All work is now complete.

Mar-21

1x5

5

Low

Depot Relocation Improvement
801 Depot Relocation Review –
Wass
Failure to re-locate depot and
manage asbestos on site leads to
inability to mitigate risk of asbestos
release.

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Paul
Staines

8/11

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

115 Local Plan -Market conditions or
Planning
ineffective spatial planning leads to
a reduction in new homes
completions and results in the
Council not meeting its new homes
target and consequently reduction
in New Homes Bonus & Council
Tax receipts.

Jon Berry Jon Berry
/ Mick
Jewitt

3x3

9

Med Progress a new Local Plan for the period up to 2035
that reflects current government guidance and
provides a good range of deliverable housing sites.
Also work closely with developers to bring sites
forward. Regular performance monitoring and good
project management.

Reviewed quarterly

3x1

3

Low

116

Jon Berry Jon Berry
/ Mick
Jewitt

1x4

4

Low Project planning to ensure new Local Plan is brought
forward in a timely manner and is based on a robust
evidence; based on sustainability appraisal,
community & stakeholder engagement and that legal
and procedural requirements are followed. Review
Local Development Scheme annually. Investment in
planning policy staff resource & software.

Review monthly

1x4

4

Low

Planning

Jon Berry Jon Berry
/ Mick
Jewitt

2x5

10 Med Robust evidence base has been developed. Policies to
reflect government guidance. External experitse
brought in to support the process. Planning
Inspectorate to report August 2021.

Reviewed monthly

1x5

5

Med

763 Local plan - Ineffective spatial
Planning
planning results in the Council
being found to be in failure and the
government intervenes.

Jon Berry Jon Berry
/ Mick
Jewitt

1x5

5

Med Up to date Local Development scheme to be
published. Members & officer involvement in Duty to
Co-operate. Robust evidence base for strategic
approach in new Local Plan

On-going

1x4

4

Low

764 Local Plan - The Local Plan is
overly ambitious & cannot be
justified at Examination

Jon Berry Jon Berry
/ Mick
Jewitt

4x4

16

High Robust evidence base has been produced and is
being consistantly updated. Duty to Co-operate
consultation with neighbouring Local Authorities and
key stakeholders. Production of Statement of Common
Ground. Strategy approach aligns with the Council’s
Economic Strategy, the Strategic Economic
Partnership, etc

Review in line with LDS

2x4

8

Med

Providing a Special Place to Live
Local Plan

Page 53

Local Plan - Lack of resources or Planning
failure in the process leads to Local
Plan being found unsound at
Examination resulting in a need to
repeat the process, leading to
speculative planning applications
and appeals.

737 Local Plan - The Plan is found to
be unsound at the Examination
stage

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Planning

9/11

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

830 Best in Class - Staff become
Planning
disengaged with the review process
or concerned about potential
outcomes leading to poor
performance, resignations/sickness
and therefore reduced capacity.

Jon Berry Jon Berry

3x4

12

High Review morale & staffing levels with Development
Managers at weekly Development Management
meeting, ensure any actions to resolve issues are
identified and acted upon.

Ongoing

2x3

6

Med

831 Best in Class - iESE Review fails
to deliver improvements

Planning

Jon Berry Jon Berry

2x5

10

Med The iESE involvement is now complete and the Chief
Planning Officer is using their findings as a base to
design an improvement plan, there has been some
delay and requirement to amend draft plans due to
Covid and emerging Local Government Reorganisation. Implement Improvement Plan.

Ongoing

1x3

3

Low

832 Best in Class - Lack of resource
hampers attempts to put
improvements in place

Planning

Jon Berry Jon Berry

4x5

20

High Review staffing levels weekly with Development
Managers and action immediately to replace/backfill
where necessary
Chief Planning Officer in post. Brief Management
Team on resource requirements

Ongoing

1x3

3

Low

Clive
Thornton

2x4

8

Med Liaise with NHS properties on regular basis, attend
NHS properties project meetings, gain assurance from
NHS properties.
Covid-19 impact on scheme delivery. Building now
transferred.

Dec-20

2x3

6

Med

Best in Class Planning service

Page 54

Lambert Hospital Community Development
818 Lambert Hospital Community
Design &
Steve
Maintenance Lister
Development - The project to
separate the utilities shared by the
Lambert Hospital and the linked
Health Centre is not completed
prior to the transfer of the hospital
to Herriot Hospice and subsequent
redevelopment
Vibrant Market Towns
751 Vibrant Market Towns Project –
Business &
Economy
Business Bulletins. Declining
numbers on mailing list or
increasing numbers of subscribers
are not opening bulletin.

Mick
Jewitt

Nicole
Patterson /
Sam
Swinbank

2x3

6

Med Keep content relevant and to the point. Continual
promotion of the bulletins to businesses, and reminder
promotional work internally so that Business &
Economy Team can recruit a pipeline of new
subscribers.

Reviewed annually/
January 2021

2x3

6

Med

752 Vibrant Market Towns Project –
Business &
Town distinctiveness themes. Lack Economy
of adoption by towns.

Mick
Jewitt

Nicole
Patterson /
Sam
Swinbank

2x3

6

Med Develop distinctiveness themes in conjunction with
delivery partners in each town to ensure buy-in and
support. Further development on VMT to be ongoing
when return to 'normal' times following Covid-19

2020/21

2x3

6

Med

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

10/11

26/01/21

Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Risk Manager
Director /
Responsible
Officer

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

755 Vibrant Market Towns Project –
Business &
Professional Communications and Economy
Media. Social Media – a
controversial post may cause
offence.

Mick
Jewitt

Nicole
Patterson /
Sam
Swinbank

1x4

4

Low Social Media training and guide provided to the team.
The posts will be created and scheduled in advance,
taking away the risk of an ‘off the cuff’ post. Post
content will be written to avoid controversy.

Training completed April
2019
On-going

1x4

4

Low

756 Vibrant Market Towns Project
–Developing the Markets offer
across the district. Lack of
engagement by traders.

Business &
Economy

Mick
Jewitt

Nicole
Patterson /
Sam
Swinbank

2x3

6

Med The development and promotion of the markets is
embracing all the markets in the district. Regular
communications with traders has been established
and will continue. The work is managed by a project
management team as required.

Annual meeting with traders
June 2019
Project Group meets as
required

2x3

6

Med

757 Vibrant Market Towns Project –
Business &
Economy
Built and Natural Environment.
Periodic Town clean -up events by
volunteers. Risk of injury.

Mick
Jewitt

Nicole
Patterson /
Sam
Swinbank

2x3

6

Med The clean-up teams are equipped with hi-vis vests and Periodic when events take
appropriate equipment (e.g. pick sticks). Care will be
place
taken to avoid heavy lifting and carrying.

1x3

3

Low

Page 55
Annex B Project Risks 2020/21 Q3

11/11

26/01/21

Annex C Service Risks with a Threshold of 12 or Above 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Director /
Responsible
Officer

Risk
Manager

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Driving Economic Vitality

Page 56

410 New Homes Bonus grant is pivotal Corporate
Finance
to the resilience of the financial
strategy.  Failure to increase the
tax base year on year or failure of
the Government to provide the
grant would impinge on this
resilience.

Louise
Louise
Branford- BranfordWhite
White

3x4

12

High The council completes a thorough review on an annual
basis to identify new homes which should be included
in the tax base that are currently not. The New
Homes bonus grant is reviewed in the Government
financial settlement annually and this will be monitored
specifically for 2020/21. The 10 year financial strategy
approved by Council in February 2020 recognises that
the government will not support this grant in future
years and therefore the amount of funding profiled has
been reduced. Alternative funding methods are being
sought.

Ongoing

3x4

12

High

411 Beyond 2019/20 there is a risk of
further significant grant reductions
should government priorities shift
from increased housing provision to
enhancing functions not
undertaken by the Council.
416 Significant reduction in government
grant and support from business
rates leading to the inability to
sustain council services at the
current level.

Corporate
Finance

Louise
Louise
Branford- BranfordWhite
White

3x4

12

High To support the future substainability of the 10 year
financial strategy the requirement to generate income
is a key objective of the Council. Projects to generate
income are being developed.

Ongoing

3x4

12

High

Corporate
Finance

Louise
Louise
Branford- BranfordWhite
White

4x5

20

High An on-going programme of efficient service delivery,
saving reviews and a focus on income generation that
ensures best value is being achieved and income is
maximised.

Ongoing

4x4

16

High

Louise
Louise
Branford- BranfordWhite
White

4x5

20

High Monitoring of business rate growth is ongoing and
opportunities are taken to retain business rates when
government initiatives arise e.g. Business Rate Pilot
scheme. Comprehensive Spending Review is awaited
and the Council is pro-actively lobbying government
with regard to potential funding being received.

Ongoing

4x4

16

High

786 Failure to meet the target for
Revenues &
business rate growth as reflected in Benefits
the Financial Strategy would impact
upon the financial resilience of the
Council.

Annex C Service Risks with a Threshold of 12 or Above 2020/21 Q3

1/2

26/01/21

Annex C Service Risks with a Threshold of 12 or Above 2020/21 Q3

Risk Risk Name
ID

Service

Service
Director /
Responsible
Officer

Risk
Manager

GROSS / INHERENT ACTION PLAN
RISK

ACTION PLAN timeline /
completion date

NET / RESIDUAL RISK

Enhancing Health & Wellbeing
542 Failure to have procedures and
available resources to carry out
proactive and reactive inspections
of potentially contaminated land
resulting in:
• Significant risk of harm to the
environment and public health if
any contamination is not
remediated.
• A potential significant financial
burden on the Council.
• Significant reputational damage.

Environmental Paul
Health
Staines

Vikki
Flowers

4x5

20

High • Documented procedures are in place and are
reviewed periodically.
• Reactive checks are carried out to establish Class A
or Class B liability groups to prevent the Council
becoming responsible for contaminated sites and
funding remediation costs.
• Information on prioritised sites is shared with
Development Management for inclusion on the
Council's Brownfield Land register of sites suitable for
redevelopment, so the cost of remediation falls to the
developer.
• There is no designated funding in the Environmental
Health budget to carry out investigation and potential
remediation of contaminated sites.

30/06/2021
Put in place a new
enforcement policy for
Contaminated land work.

3x4

12

High

3x4

12

High Working closely with other Local Authorities and North
Yorkshire County Council to address safeguarding
issues and mitigate risk. Need to ensure that despite
cuts in funding, through shaping of new delivery
models, there continues to be sufficient safeguarding
measures in place going forward. New protocol has
been implemented from 1st April 2018

Quarterly reviews

3x4

12

High

4x3

12

High Procedures to be developed to pursue non payment
through the Community Infrastructure Levy
regulations. Income low in part due to the levels of
exemptions

Quarterly review

4x3

12

High

Caring for the Environment

Page 57

Risks for this priority were considered to be below the net risk threshold of 12 or above
Providing a Special Place to Live
426 Failure to properly manage joint
Strategic
arrangements with North Yorkshire Housing
County Council Children & Young
People's Service leads to
safeguarding problems with
homeless children, resulting in
legal challenge and personal harm

Mick
Jewitt

638 Community Infrastructure Levy
Planning
income below expectations, leading
to a lack of funding for
infrastructure improvements and
therefore further delivery of
housing

Jon Berry Ann
Rawlinson

Annex C Service Risks with a Threshold of 12 or Above 2020/21 Q3

Alison
Morton

2/2

26/01/21

This page is intentionally left blank

